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Chief Executive Officer’s Report

Chairpersons Report
The 2015/16 financial year saw more visitors than ever to the
Wetlands as we successfully rolled out a number of events and
tourism offerings. We made great progress across a number of
areas.
Most notable over the past year was the Autumn Program which
highlighted the great potential of the site as a number of tourism
initiatives were rolled out. These included Mokoan Flash Tents,
Guido van Helten street art installation and the Autumn Event
Program, which included a multicultural music festival, moonlit
and bonfire dining experiences and a cultural bike ride with the
Yorta Yorta Nations.
We continue to forge strong relationships with a broad range
of community groups and educational institutions and to be a
location that locals and visitors want to learn about. We engage
with all groups through tailored tours or programs.
Our annual Winton Dreaming event, that engages local
Indigenous children, continues to grow. This year we welcomed
over 40 Koori students from surrounding schools to spend the
day ‘on country’ with elders, learning about their traditions and
the significance of the wetlands environment. As in previous
years, this day proved to be very special for all who attended.

East Catchment Management Authority (NECMA) and Tourism
North East. We are all working to continue delivering ecological
renewal as well as great outcomes for eco-tourism at the site.
As we move into the next phase of strategic planning for the
2016 – 2019 we have farewelled fellow Committee members,
Brian McLennan and Doug Bain who both finished their
appointments in March 2016. I would like to sincerely thank Brian
and Doug for their valuable contributions to the Committee’s
work. Doug provided valuable contributions based on his
deep understanding of the site and local community and Brian
contributed through his expertise in engineering and water
management. Tammy Atkins, Kim Scanlon and Irene Grant
were appointed to the Committee in March. They bring strong
backgrounds in community service and expertise in strategic
planning, tourism development and more.
I would like to take this opportunity to thank my fellow Committee
members for their ongoing commitment and expertise. Our
Committee continues to function very well and this would not
be possible without their knowledge, energy and professional
approach. I would also like to make mention of the outstanding
efforts of the Winton Wetlands staff.

The first annual Mokoan Science Forum on wetland ecology
was hosted at the site last year and was attended by over one
hundred eminent scientists and practitioners from around
the nation. This will be an annual event aimed at facilitating
research and disseminating ideas on wetland ecological renewal.
We have strengthened our key partnerships with the Yorta Yorta
Nation Aboriginal Corporation, Department of Environment,
Land, Water & Planning (DELWP), Regional Development
Victoria (RDV), Benalla Rural City, Rural City of Wangaratta,
Glenrowan Vignerons Association, local CFA brigades, North
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Dr Dennis O’Brien
Chairperson

This year saw the project continue to deliver in the areas
of ecological restoration, events and tourism with more and
more visitors coming from Melbourne and interstate to see the
developments of the project. Visitation to the café continues to
grow, with many functions, workshops and forums being held in
the award winning Mokoan Hub.
This year we launched new products on site in the areas of
tourism and arts which saw our very own street art installation
by internationally recognised Street Artist Guido van Helten. We
also partnered with a pop up hotel provider FlashCamp to deliver
Mokoan Flash Tents.
In one of the biggest event calendars seen at the Winton
Wetlands to date, we held our first music festival in May – the
Mokoan Music Fest. Our Creative Producer, Anita Larkin worked
hard to bring this event to life. The Fest was headlined by
Indigenous Opera Singer, Deborah Cheetham this event brought
sounds from a variety of artists including The Deans and George
and Noriko. This event saw new partnerships with Multicultural
Arts Victoria and local group Living Culture Together.
Much work has been implemented to enhance and promote the
natural renewal of the site and many new research projects have
been commenced. With the site completely drying out over the
year, part-time Restoration Scientist Dr. Lance Lloyd was able
lead the implementation of new carp control measures at Boggy
Bridge Road and at the Outlet Channel. These screens have been
designed to restrict the ability for carp to travel back up-stream
into the wetlands system.
Feral animal and weed control continues with the implementation
of innovative approaches has become much more organised,
scientific and strategic, resulting in a considerable reduction in
rabbit and fox numbers. Dr. Lisa Farnsworth successfully rolled
out the use of new CPE technology for the management of foxes
which resulted in the best program to date. Further to the fox
control measures significant work was undertaken to manage
the rabbits on site.

Site Development Manager, Julie Flack has worked with many
local providers to prepare the South-West section of the site for
the boardwalk which unfortunately has been placed on hold due
to spring rainfall.
The Friends of Winton Wetlands have done some amazing work
and much thanks to Geoff Barrow and the Committee of the
Friends for the efforts throughout the year. Many new research
projects, restoration works and education has been completed
due to your hard work and dedication.
The project developed stronger and more strategic partnerships
and relationships with the Friends of Winton Wetlands, Yorta
Yorta Nations Aboriginal Corporation, our Registered Aboriginal
Party, DELWP, RDV, Benalla Rural City Council, Rural City of
Wangaratta, Tourism North East, Goulburn Broken Catchment
Management Authority, NECMA, Benalla Business Network,
Universities, the Swamps Rivers Ranges Group, Warby Range
Landcare Group, wineries and our neighbours in the catchment.
There are many projects underway to ensure that visitors to the
site are offered compelling and exciting opportunities to interact
with and be educated by the Winton Wetlands. We look forward
to sharing our enjoyment in delivering for the community, the
environment and local business in 2016-17 with a much wider
range of partners and visitors. The project’s national and
international significance and potential will continue to emerge
as more people and groups join us in this unique project.

Jim Grant PSM
Chief Executive Officer
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HISTORY
Indigenous History

European History

The Winton Wetlands Committee of Management acknowledges
Australia’s first peoples, the traditional owners of this place,
whose cultures and customs have nurtured, and value the
resources of these Wetlands.

The Winton Wetlands Committee of Management acknowledges
our pioneering European farmers and their descendants, their
agricultural expertise, their personal contributions and their
place in the history of the current-day Winton Wetlands Reserve.

We honour the presence of their ancestors and pay our respects
to the elders both past and present.

The Mokoan Run, occupying part of the area incorporating the
original Winton Swamp (7km from Benalla) was one of many
pastoral licences granted in and around the Benalla region in the
1840s. By the 1860s, European settlement in the area associated
with the Gold Rush to north east Victoria had led to farming and
other agricultural practices becoming well-established. Farming
has been continuously refined by generations of European
farming families between the 1840s and the present day.

The Winton Wetlands Reserve is a highly significant cultural and
historic landscape, rich in Indigenous cultural places and to this
day, the area is of considerable social, historical, scientific and
spiritual value to its traditional owners.
The area was known by Indigenous peoples as Mokoan, an
extensive ephemeral wetland system which was inundated
seasonally. The area was rich in traditional food sources
and provided water, shelter and medicine for Indigenous
communities. The wealth of resources adequately sustained
significant Indigenous communities. Events of scale, such as
corroborees, trade and other traditional ceremonies brought
family groups together at this traditional meeting place.
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In 1971, the Winton Swamp and nearby Green Swamp were
inundated to create Lake Mokoan. The significant farming
community that had thrived in the area up until that time
was dispersed. Sixteen farming families had all of their land
compulsorily acquired, with a further 52 families having to give
up more than 5,000ha of land to make way for the Lake. The
affected farming families’ existence, their family units and their
livelihoods were changed forever. This is even more poignant,
considering that Lake Mokoan was decommissioned in 2009.
The European history tells the story of struggles with the land,
water, drought, flood, depression, rebellion, death and disaster
– and the formation of a strong and resilient community, thriving
on good grazing country and the richness, beauty and diversity
of the area.
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The Committee
Dennis O’Brien

Brian McLennan (until March 2016)

Doug Bain (until March 2016)

Dennis is Chair of the Winton Wetlands Committee of
Management, initially appointed in 2012 and reappointed in 2015
to serve until 2018.

Brian is a community member of the Winton Wetlands Committee
of Management appointed in 2012 to serve until 2016. He is
a Civil Engineer and a Fellow of the Institution of Engineers,
Australia.

Doug is a community member of the Winton Wetlands Committee
of Management appointed 2012 to serve until March 2016 and a
former member of the Lake Mokoan Future Land Use Steering
Committee. Doug has 40 year’s service to the Country Fire
Authority (CFA) at Taminick brigade, 12 of those years as
Captain.

He has a Bachelor of Science (Agriculture) from the University
of Sydney, a Master Science from the University of Manitoba in
Canada and a PhD from Oregon State University in the United
States.
He has worked and lived in Canada, the USA, Indonesia, The
Philippines and Sri Lanka and has held positions at a number
of universities in Australia, most recently as the Director of
Postgraduate Programs at Marcus Oldham College. Before that
he was Associate Professor and Head of the Dookie Campus and
Acting Associate Dean Teaching and Learning in the Faculty of
Land and Food Resources at the University of Melbourne. Prior
to moving to Victoria he was Head of the School of Business
at Southern Cross University and a Senior Lecturer at the
University of Wollongong in NSW.
He has a strong history of community engagement as Chair
of the Australia Holiday Coast Regional Development Board
(NSW) and as a member of various other committees in NSW,
Chair of the Dookie Biolinks Program, Member of the Dookie
Development Forum and currently as a member of Goomalibee
Landcare.
Dennis has a strong belief in the ecological, social and
commercial value of the wetlands to the local and regional
community.

Suzy Martin
Suzy Martin is a community member of the Winton Wetlands
Committee of Management appointed in 2012 to serve until 2018
and is the Deputy Chairperson. Suzy has lived in the region for
24 years until recently. Prior to moving to Benalla Suzy had
a career in retail as marketing and merchandise development
manager for a national retail chain.
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Until the sale last year of their farm Suzy and her husband Jim
operated an Angus seedstock enterprise on their property 20km
south east of Benalla and have had a long association with
the region from several different aspects. Firstly through her
work as a Councillor for Benalla Rural City Council for the past
eight years, secondly as a farmer through her membership of
several farm groups over the past 24 years and finally through
her experience participating in numerous Farmers Markets and
Expos throughout the region over the past ten years.

Brian has extensive senior management experience in Local
Government, including 21 years in Albury where he became
Director of City Services responsible for the delivery of major
infrastructure and community projects.
After leaving Local Government, Brian was Consultant
Project Manager for the Albury Wodonga Development
Corporation responsible for urban development undertaken
by the Corporation at Thurgoona. He has a strong interest in
environmental management and is a co-author of the Thurgoona
Threatened Species Conservation Strategy.
Brian is currently Chairperson of the Lake Hume Plan
Community Reference Group and a community member of the
Albury Environmental Lands Advisory Committee.

Catherine Wall
Catherine is a community member of the Winton Wetlands
Committee of Management appointed in 2015 to serve until 2018.
Catherine has education and career experience in both business
and the arts. She has a Bachelor of Arts from the Victorian
College of the Arts, a graduate diploma in business and a
MBA. Following a career switch from the arts, she served as
General Manager of an industry-leading horticultural company
and is currently Managing Partner of strategic planning
consultancy McKINNA et al. Catherine consults widely in regional
development, food and tourism. Prior to joining the committee
she was one of the consultants who developed the wetlands
master plan and strategic plan which is how she developed her
passion for the project.
Catherine resides in Strathbogie Shire. She has previously
served on a private company board in the horticultural sector
and served three years on the Wangaratta Festival of Jazz board,
including a term as Deputy Chair. She is a graduate of the
Australian Institute of Company Directors.

Doug’s family enjoy strong links with Winton North/Taminick
areas. As a grazier, Doug has a thorough understanding of land
use, climate, the topography and demography of the local area
and brings a history of the district to the committee.
Doug is also a member of the Benalla Auto Club and is a 27 year
member of the Melbourne Cricket Club (MCC).

Irene Grant (from April 2016)
Irene is a representative of the Rural City of Wangaratta on the
Winton Wetlands Committee of Management. She was appointed
in April 2016 until November 2016 as her term with Rural City of
Wangaratta had ceased. As a senior journalist by profession she
has gained extensive experience in regional media as well as
being a senior State Government communications manager for
the Department of Natural Resources and Environment and the
Department of Education and Early Childhood Development.
Irene was Mayor of Rural City of Wangaratta for three terms as
well as serving as a councillor and was the Chairperson of the
Australian Regional Cities Group in
2003/2004.
Irene was an Administrator of the Rural City of Wangaratta, a
member of the Wangaratta Jazz Festival Board and is chair of
the Wangaratta Sport and Recreation Advisory Board. Over many
years she has taken an active leadership interest in a number of
community based sporting, education and cultural groups.

Kim Scanlon (from March 2016)
Kim is a community member of the Winton Wetlands Committee
of Management appointed in March 2016 to serve until March
2018.
Kim is employed as the Executive Officer of the Alpine Valleys
Community Leadership Program, developing the skills and
knowledge of emerging community leaders from across the
North East of Victoria. Prior to this Kim worked for Local
and State Government in Community Development roles,
and managed 15 Mile Creek School Camp for the Education
Department for 18 years.
A graduate of the Australian Institute of Company Directors,
Kim has wide experience on many community Boards, including
Benalla Health, the Rotary Club of Benalla, the Benalla Young
Sportsperson Trust and Greta Valley Landcare. Kim’s personal
interests include gardening, regional food and wine, and skiing.

Rob Carolane
Rob is a community member of the Winton Wetlands Committee
of Management, appointed in 2012 to serve until 2018, and
principal consultant with Twin Prism Consulting.
Rob is a self-employed facilitator and community engagement
practitioner who works with state and local government,
community-based organisations, and business. Rob brings
facilitation skills to all areas of his work in strategic planning,
community engagement, and leadership training.
Rob has also worked in the adult education, horticulture and
science industries.
Rob’s formal qualifications include a Bachelor of Science and
Advanced Diploma of Group Facilitation. He is a graduate of the
Australian Institute of Company Directors Course.
Rob has been a member on the boards of community
organisations for over 25 years and is currently Deputy Chair
of the Centre for Continuing Education Inc. and a CFA Volunteer
firefighter with the Whitfield and District Brigade.
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Rowena Ellis

Tammy Atkins (from March 2016)

Rowena is a community member of the Winton Wetlands
Committee of Management appointed 2012 to serve until
2018. She is currently a partner of Highview Partners, a small
management consulting firm based in Mansfield. She also
operates a small farm on the outskirts of Mansfield and is
currently the coordinator of the North East Farmers Markets
group.

Tammy is a community member of the Winton Wetlands
Committee of Management appointed in March 2016 to serve
until March 2018.

Rowena has significant experience as a senior HR Manager
within public and corporate sectors and was a Board Member
of Mansfield & District Community Bank holding the position of
Deputy Chair.

Sue Lebish
Sue is a community member of the Winton Wetlands Committee
of Management appointed recently to serve until 2018 and
operates a partnership in consulting services.
She has over twenty years’ Professional and Senior Management
experience in Local Government and University sectors
providing community engagement, finance and administrative
roles in Queensland, Canberra and now locally.
Sue’s formal qualifications include a Master of Business
Administration, a Bachelor of Commerce and she is also a
Certified Practising Accountant. Sue is currently a member of
the Audit Committee for the Alpine Shire and has held Board
positions in Government Owed Enterprises and University
Research Corporations.

Tammy is a consultant with an interest in regional development.
Her most recent roles include time as Hume region manager for
the Industry Capability Network, as a consultant at The Regional
Development Company and as an Economic Development Officer
for Indigo Shire Council.
Community minded, she is a former Councillor at the Rural City
of Wangaratta, an active Rotarian and a graduate of the local
Alpine Valleys Community Leadership Program. She is currently
undertaking the Australian Rural Leadership Program.
She has a CertIV in Training and Assessment, a Bachelor
of Science in Mineral Economics and Diplomas in Project
Management and Community Development.

MEETING ATTENDANCE
There were 10 Ordinary Committee meetings held in 2015-16.

Advisory Panels

Attendances by Committee members were as follows:

The Winton Wetlands Committee of Management has established
three Advisory Panels:

Meetings
			

Tony McIlroy
Tony is the Benalla Rural City Council nominated member of the
Committee and has held the position of Chief Executive Officer
of the Benalla Rural City Council for over thirteen years. Tony
has over twenty six years Senior Management experience in the
Local Government Sector in Finance and Administration roles
and has led Project Management Teams in the planning and
construction of major community facilities.

Sue and her husband operate a small farm near Myrtleford
where they are growing alternative crops and cattle.

Meetings
Attended

Dennis O’Brien (Chair)

10

10

Suzy Martin (Deputy Chair)

10

8

Brian McLennan*

7

5

Catherine Wall

10

9

Doug Bain*

7

7

Irene Grant**

3

2

Kim Scanlon**

3

2

Rob Carolane

10

8

Rowena Ellis

10

8

Sue Lebish

10

9

3

3

10

7

Tammy Atkins**
Tony Mcllroy
		
*served until 24 March 2016

** served from 25 March 2016

Sub-Committees
Two Sub-Committees meet regularly to perform some of the
work of the Committee:
1.

1.

Environmental Strategy Advisory Panel
Professor Max Finlayson (Chair)
Charles Sturt University
Emeritus Prof Philip (Sam) Lake
Monash University
Dr Michelle Casanova
Federation University and Royal Botanic Gardens
Dr Ben Gawne
Latrobe University
Sue Berwick
Department of Environment, Land, Water and Planning

2. Visitor Experience Advisory Panel
Suzy Martin (Convenor)
Dennis O’Brien
Catherine Wall
3. Planning and Partnership Advisory Panel
Sue Lebish (Convenor)
Rob Carolane
Rowena Ellis

Finance, Remuneration and Commercial Operations
Sub- Committee
Dennis O’Brien (Chair)
Suzy Martin (Deputy Chair)
Rowena Ellis

2. Governance, Audit & Risk Sub-Committee
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Rob Carolane (Chair)
Sue Lebish
Tony McIlroy
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BUILD VISITATION
Visitor Numbers

Full Moon Paddle 2015

Visitor numbers have significantly increased over the 2015/16
period. While this can be generally attributed to the Mokoan
Hub and Café, a successful Autumn Events program and
community tours also contributed to increased visitors. Much
work has been done to continue to enhance visitor experience
at the site during 2015/16 with a series of high quality events.

The Full Moon Paddle held on 14 November 2015 was a pilot
for night-time events at the Winton Wetlands. The event
was over subscribed and booked out very quickly. Over 50
participants took to the water and were treated to an evening
of cultural insight provided by Yorta Yorta man Shane Charles
and local Doug Bain. The night was capped with a spectacular
viewing of the full moon over the Winton Wetlands.

Mokoan Flash Tents (18 March – 23 May 2016)

Wall to Wall 2016

Winton Wetlands worked with FlashCamp to deliver Mokoan
Flash Tents, stylish glamping accommodation in the heart of
the Winton Wetlands. There were ten 5m diameter bell tents
set up in a community glamping site, fully equipped with
flushing toilets and hot showers.

As part of the 2016 the Winton Wetlands commissioned artist
Guido van Helten to transform the concrete tank on the corner
of Boggy Bridge and Winton North Road into a special street
art piece that pays tribute to local Country Fire Authority
Volunteers.

Mokoan Flash Tents was set up at Green’s Hill and proved to
generate much interest in the wetlands as a destination for
glamping and camping expieriences.

The commission saw Guido incorporate three images, Colin
Hooke from Chesney Vale Brigade, Robert Green of Taminick
Brigade and Danielle Spokes of Winton Brigade.

Autumn Events Program

Blood Moon Banquet

The Autumn Program proved to be successful in attracting a
range of locals and new visitors to the Winton Wetlands. We
offered a range of events including unique dining and cycling
experiences and a cultural music festival atop of Green’s Hill.

Green’s Hill came alive as a pop-up restaurant in March for the
Blood Moon Banquet. Partnering with renowned local chef
Adam Pizzini from the award winning Rinaldo’s Casa Cucina
in Wangaratta guests were delighted with an unforgettable
culinary event celebrating our spectacular southern night sky.

Work is continuing on the collection of data on the visitors to
the site, their place of origin and local spend.
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Walupka Woka Ride

A Wetland Bonfire & Feast

Public Amenities

Our annual cultural Walupka Woka Bike Ride was again a
success with over 50 participants exploring the site with
Yorta Yorta people. Co-created by the Yorta Yorta Nations
and the Winton Wetlands team, riders were provided with
interpretations and stories connected to the Winton Wetlands.

In May we hosted a bonfire night on the northern foreshore as
part of the Annual High Country Harvest Festival. This festival
is one of the north-east’s biggest food and wine events and
runs over a two week period.

New public amenities will be installed following design and
construction this year. The new amenity blocks, complete
with sustainable set-up, will be installed at three locations
within the site where campgrounds are earmarked and will be
included with the re-development of Green’s Hill.

A sit down meal under the light of the fire and moon, guests
were treated to a three courses featuring local produce and
local wines.
Local musician Adam Toms performed on the night, adding to
the relaxed atmosphere guests enjoyed as they soaked up the
warmth of the fire. Feedback on the night and following it has
been very positive.

Bike Tracks

Mokoan Music Fest 2016
Set in a beautiful natural amphitheatre in the heart of Winton
Wetlands, Mokoan Music Fest is a unique contemporary music
experience in the great outdoors. Festival goers soaked up
amazing scenery and be immersed in sounds from close to
home and all around the globe featuring: Deborah Cheetham &
Dhungala Children’s Choir’s, George and Noriko, Nhatty Man &
the Lalibelas, The Deans and Burundian Drummers
Mokoan Music Fest sees Winton Wetlands working in
partnership with the Living Culture Together project and
Multicultural Arts Victoria for the first time to bring the site to
life with unique music and arts that celebrate its connections
to the earth’s oldest and newest living cultures. The event was
part of Winton Wetlands exciting Autumn program.
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A great deal of the preliminary work for the development of
the bike paths at the wetlands was undertaken in the last 12
months. Multiple Cultural Heritage Management Plans were
sought and received for the bike path development.
Cyclists will soon be able to access secluded camping
locations with a section of the Dam Wall being breached to
create access to a bike or pedestrian only camping site.
The bike path in the south west corner of the reserve was
commenced, which connects up to the bike path developed
by the Benalla Rural City. This section of trail runs for
approximately 1.4km from Nelson Road, including a section
that runs along the Dam Wall for 700 metres.
A section of the bike path has also been completed along the
northern foreshore. This runs from the Observation Pad all
the way along the foreshore for approximately 2km. This small
section has already proven popular with locals and visitors to
the wetlands.

Camp ground development
Three locations have been selected to become bush camping
sites within the reserve and prefabrication of the amenity
blocks was undertaken in 2015/16 with installation in the
second half of 2016.
The Duck Pond Camp will now be relocated to Bill Friday
Swamp to enable more efficient access to key sites within the
wetlands.
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Renew our Environment
Environmental Strategic Advisory Panel

Scientific Research Forum 2015

The Environmental Strategic Advisory Panel (ESAP) was
formed in 2015 to develop a long term approach to the
restoration of the Winton Wetlands. Creating a strong growth
of macrophytes in the wetlands, delivering a framework of
trees for redgum and box woodland renewal and developing a
clear research strategy and plan have been undertaken as key
priorities.

In August 2015, the Winton Wetlands held its inaugural
Winton Wetlands Science Forum. The forum was attended by
almost 100 participants over the two day forum. Facilitated
by Professor Max Finlayson, the forum included a site tour
and many interesting presentations on restoration efforts at
the Winton Wetlands and other like projects. This forum is
scheduled for August 2016 and will continue annually.

The ESAP is Chaired by Prof Max Finlayson who is supported
by Emeritus Prof Sam Lake, Dr Michelle Casanova, Dr Ben
Gawne and Sue Berwick with Committee of Management
representatives being Dr Dennis O’Brien and Mr Doug Bain.
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Red Gum Seed Research

Water Quality and fish management

Deakin University student Andrew White commenced an
examination of the impact of long term flooding on the
seedbank potential of a freshwater meadow dominated by
River Red-gum. Our Restoration Scientist, Lance Lloyd is
working closely with Andrew and Deakin University on this
project. The outcomes will help to inform what we should
expect from the site over time.

The 2015 winter/spring period saw the cyclical drying out of
99% of the wetland.

Cane Grass growth and regeneration
Melbourne University student Daniel Martin commenced a
research project on Autecology of Southern Cane-grass at
Winton Wetlands. This links in with the revegetation that the
Friends of Winton Wetlands have undertaken throughout the
year.

In autumn the wetlands reached its lowest level for the year
with a precious reserve of the deeper water remaining in
Mokoan Ponds and the Outlet Channel. There was at this time
one minor blue green algae outbreak.
Carp screens were installed at Boggy Bridge Road and at the
Outlet Channel to prevent migration of European Carp into the
reserve. Additional screens are planned for Winton and Eleven
Mile Creeks.
Rain events commenced in May with the wetlands filling to
approximately 3% capacity by the end of June.

14

Woodland Regeneration
In winter 2015, approximately 20,000 box trees were planted
in the grassy box woodland sites within the site. Natural
recruitment of River Red Gum has become evident where
there are remnant seed trees and supplementary tube stock
plantings have been carried out in the priority depleted areas.

Pest Animal Control
Pest plant and animal control was stepped up with wellplanned integration of newly approved Candid Pest Ejector
(CPE). This integrated approach seems to have had the desired
impact and we will continue over the next few years with this
method. Strategic monitoring continues to ensure the best
possible results are achieved with each program.
Ferreting has been introduced, along with various other
methods, in the management of rabbits at the Wetlands. This
new initiative commenced late in the year and is being run as
a pilot program.
2015-16: 53 Foxes, 2 Cats
CPE baits Sept/ Oct 2015
Shooting Oct 2015		
Shooting April 2016		
CPE baits May-June 2016

17 foxes
1
7 foxes
28 foxes

St Johns Wort and Paterson’s Curse were the primary focus of
weed control works with phalaris, stinkwort and bathurst burr
reduction works also undertaken. Non listed weeds of wind
born seed continue to dominate the wetlands exposed areas.
TOTAL: 229 Ha
Winton north strategic burn – 80 Ha
Internal roadsides – 143 Ha
Bill Friday swamp – 4 Ha
Greens Hill – 2 Ha

Regent Honeyeater
Our partnership with the Regent Honeyeater Project continues
to grow as we work collaboratively with project managers on
identifying and enhancing new corridors that will create better
linkages. Over the 2015/16 period this partnership saw 6200
seedlings planted. Great results from this work are already
being recorded.
The new northwest bio link site along Lake Mokoan road is
28.5 Ha of new and enhanced woodlands, protected from
grazing.
The Goulds Hill site located near Ashmeads swamp had 200
white box woodland species planted covering 3.6. Ha

PARTNERSHIPS
Birdlife Murray-Goulburn

Regent Honey Eater

Volunteers from Birdlife Murray-Goulburn continue quarterly
bird surveys at the Wetlands. There have now been over 186
species of birds recorded at the site. These quarterly surveys
are an excellent source of useful data. Our Restoration
Scientists are working closely with the group to work
towards possible reintroduction of birds as well as planning
revegetation to attract more species of birds to the Wetlands.

Our partnership with the Regent Honeyeater Project continues
to grow as we work collaboratively with project managers on
identifying new corridors that will create better linkages. Over
the 2015/16 period this partnership saw 3.6 HA planted. Great
results from this work are already being recorded.

Living Culture Together
Established in 2015, Living Culture Together (LCT) is the first
collective of its kind in Benalla bringing together highly skilled
Aboriginal and non-Aboriginal artists, cultural development
and environmental workers and educators. Winton Wetlands
has worked with LCT to deliver the first music event at the
site Mokoan Music Fest 2016. LCT works consultatively with
Yorta Yorta elders and community drawing on its members’
diverse skills, experience and networks to creatively facilitate
quality new arts and cultural inclusion activity that brings
community together and builds awareness and understanding
of Aboriginal culture in Benalla.

The emerging challenge will be managing our pest animal
control program in conjunction with an increasing amount of
tourism events and camping.

Pest Plant
Work on reduction of pest plants continues to target State and
Regional listed weeds. Biomass management works included
grazing, slashing and planned burning. The North Winton
Road strategic fire break planned burn was undertaken by
DELWP in autumn.
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Living Culture Together members, Steve James, Lynne Thorpe, Judy
Schwarzman, Louise Levy, Donna James and Anita Larkin
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CFA

Yorta Yorta Nations Aboriginal Corporation

Tourism North East

Rural City of Wangaratta

Winton Wetlands continues to work in close partnership with
the local CFA brigades in a number of capacities. Local CFA
brigades actively participate in fire preparedness activities at
the Wetlands including planned burning activities.

Our relationship with Yorta Yorta Nations deepened
and strengthened. Regular meetings at CEO level and a
collaboration on a great number of on-ground works built a
stronger understanding and sense of purpose.

Working with our regional industry leader Tourism North East
(TNE) has been critical in undertaking planning and research
of our product offering at the Winton Wetlands. TNE assisted
the Committee in the development of project branding to
enable progress to Stage 2 of the Master Plan.

Stronger links were forged with Rural City of Wangaratta
Council as we collaborated on the development of cycle paths
connecting the Wetlands with Wangaratta.

Alpine Valleys Community Leadership Program

Winton Wetlands continues to work well with Benalla Rural
City Council. The Council and the Council staff both had
representation on the Committee and provided significant
support at every level, from strategy, to planning and delivery.

Goulburn Murray Water
Goulburn Murray Water continues to be a progressive partner
in the maintenance and access of the site.

Winton Wetlands supports the Alpine Valleys Community
Leadership Program (AVCLP) and continues to have a strong
partnership to educate the future leaders of our community.

Multicultural Arts Victoria

Corrections Victoria

Winton Wetlands and Multicultural Arts Victoria (MAV) worked
on the delivery Mokoan Music Fest. This partnership along
with the LCT partnership have assisted this Winton Wetlands
in the delivery of arts and culture.

The Winton Wetlands has been working with Corrections
Victoria and Beechworth Landmate on a number of projects
over the past twelve months that have been critical to the
restoration and land management of the site.

Benalla Rural City Council

Benalla Street Art Committee
We worked in partnership with the Benalla Street Art
Committee to deliver a street art piece out at the Winton
Wetlands as part of Wall to Wall Festival 2016. We seek to
continue to participate in this iconic Benalla event in 2017 and
beyond.

The works done by the Landmate team are aimed at these
goals: weed control, fire management, erosion control,
revegetation, habitat management, rare species protection,
feral animal management and sustainable ecotourism. This
work has helped the prisoners develop a wide variety of skills
that can be used in a wide variety of industries including,
conservation management, regeneration, construction,
gardening, landscaping and environmental pest control.

Shane Charles, Walupka Woka Bike Ride 2016
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EMBRACE OUR COMMUNITY

Friends of Winton Wetlands
The Friends of Winton Wetlands were successful in obtaining
two Threatened Species Community Action Grants from
DELWP. Two projects were developed.

BBN

Schools and Community Groups

The Winton Wetlands is an active member of the Benalla
Business Network (BBN). The BBN promotes and helps coordinate training workshops/seminars/events and information
networking opportunities to Benalla businesses and the wider
community. The association has successful partnerships
with local government, businesses and the community
collaboratively to ensure the economic future of Benalla and
the surrounding communities.

Throughout the last 12 months we have continued to nurture a
very strong working relationship with the VCAL students from
FCJ and Benalla P-12. These students have assisted us with a
number of important projects including the completion of the
observation pad, the planting of many thousands of trees and
the preparation of the northern foreshore in readiness for the
official opening of the Mokoan Hub in May.

A senior member of Winton Wetlands staff is a member of
the BBN Committee and has been actively involved in their
various activities throughout the last 12 months. During this
time Winton Wetlands has been very supportive of the BBN’s
planned activities and events.
Throughout the year Winton Wetlands has supported many
of the BBN activities as they align perfectly with many of the
project’s core values.

We continue to actively engage with many community groups
through presentations, site tours and information packs to
ensure our community is up to date with the work that has
been done to progress the project.
Commencing in early 2016, the Winton Wetlands has engaged
Bob Winters to provide curriculum material for Unit 3
Geography studies. This material includes teacher material for
field work studies at the Winton Wetlands.
The Presbyterian Ladies College were the first to use Winton
Wetlands as a site for field studies for this unit.
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Melbourne Universtiy tour

“That’s One Giant Leap” focussed on restoration of habitat
for Brush Tailed Phascogales and Squirrel Gliders. Two key
components of the project were habitat enhancement through
revegetation and the provision of suitable nest boxes.

Replanting this diverse range of plants will enhance the habitat
under the water and around the margins of these wetlands. We
expect the plants will become established quickly and expand
their distribution as spring arrives. On the planting day the
group were fortunate enough to find a remnant population
of Cane Grass near the Mokoan Ponds (which was stranded
from the former Lake Mokoan) and we were able to take 150
cuttings from these parent plants and replant these into the
ponds.

Planting of approximately 1000 appropriate understorey
species in existing woodlands and reconnecting corridors was
done with the help of around 30 volunteers. Nest boxes were
built by a local carpenter and by Shepparton VCAL students.
So far 50 boxes have been placed and the work continues.

This transplantation will complement the University of
Melbourne experiments which are taking part in nearby sites
to assess the best methods to re-establish Cane Grass, one of
the foundation plant species at Winton Wetlands, throughout
the site. Ongoing water monitoring should tell the story of
improved water quality at the sites.

Nest box monitoring will start in Spring 2016 and continue
regularly as part of the Friends ongoing activities. The
information will contribute to the management of the species
and habitat on the Reserve.

A wetlands and frogs awareness day was held in April
with approximately 50 people in attendance. Currently
frog monitoring is continuing at 12 locations throughout the
Wetlands.

The “Friends, Frogs and Fishes” project aimed at reducing
carp numbers in the Dam Wall ponds and surrounding dams,
revegetation of the ponds, water monitoring and recording of
frog calls to identify the species present at different seasons
in the Wetlands. Over 700 wetland plants were planted by
30 volunteers. These plants were mostly sourced from local
nurseries using species or stock previously known from the
site but now rare.
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Photo by Competition Winner Garry Jones
Storytelling

TELLING OUR STORIES
World Wetlands Day Photo Competition
To celebrate World Wetlands Day in early February 2016,
we conducted a ‘Shoot & Share’ photo competition. The
competition invited entrants to submit photos of the Wetlands
taken in the previous 6 months, with many specifically visiting
the site armed with their cameras to capture that magic
moment.

Economic Benefits
The Winton Wetlands Committee of Management observes
Victorian Government procurement and purchasing rules and
has implemented a Regional Sourcing and Purchasing Policy
which benefits the local economy and community.
The restoration of the Wetlands and development of its
infrastructure is bringing significant benefit to the region
through investment in local business, as evidenced by the data
in the graph below;

Aside from providing us with a new collection of quality
photos to use in our marketing collateral, the competition also
saw our number of Facebook follows increase dramatically.
Over the year a number of installations were rolled out that
assist with telling the many stories of Winton Wetlands.
Visitor experience staff worked on the story of the Martin
Family by creating an installation that evoked the imagination
of our visitors with brightly coloured cows. This installation
represents the past landuse of the site.
Further to this, the Street Art also aids the story telling of the
connection to local Country Fire Authority volunteers in our
region and their longstanding commitment to protecting the
site and the surrounding communities.
Further concepts are well underway and will be rolled out in
early 2017.

• Victoria - North East • Victoria - Other • Melbourne Metro • Interstate
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Auditor’s Independence Declaration
WINTON WETLANDS COMMITTEE OF MANAGEMENT INC.
ABN: 53 224 268 294
We have audited the financial statements of Winton Wetlands Committee of Management Inc. for the financial
AUDITOR’S INDEPENDENCE DECLARATION

period ended 30th June 2016. We provide you with the following information for the period covered by our
engagement and our auditor report:
We have audited the financial statements of Winton Wetlands Committee of Management Inc. for the financial period ended 30t
June 2016.
WePty
provide
youfirm’)
with is
theindependent
following information
for the
period Wetlands
covered by
our engagement
and our auditor report:
Mogg
Osborne
Ltd (‘the
with respect
to Winton
Committee
of Management
Inc. and its controlled entities in accordance with APES 110 Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants,
Mogg Osborne
Pty Ltd (‘the–firm’)
is independent
with respect
to Winton Wetlands Committee of Management Inc. and its
Section
290 Independence
Assurance
Engagements
, as applicable.
controlled entities in accordance with APES 110 Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants, Section 290 Independence –
Assurance
, as applicable.
Neither
the Engagements
firm, nor any partners
or professional staff members who are members of the audit team nor any
managerial (or above) staff members who provide more than 10 hours of non-audit services to Winton Wetlands
Neither the firm, nor any partners or professional staff members who are members of the audit team nor any managerial (or abov
Committee of Management Inc. nor their immediate family members, have any direct or material indirect financial
staff members who provide more than 10 hours of non-audit services to Winton Wetlands Committee of Management Inc. nor th
interest in Winton Wetlands Committee of Management Inc.
immediate family members, have any direct or material indirect financial interest in Winton Wetlands Committee of Management
Inc.
Neither
the firm nor members of the Winton Wetlands Committee of Management Inc audit team, nor their

immediate family members, owe any amount to Winton Wetlands Committee of Management Inc. unless
Neither the firm nor members of the Winton Wetlands Committee of Management Inc audit team, nor their immediate family
that amount arose in the ordinary course of business in accordance with Winton Wetlands Committee of
members, owe
any
amount
to Winton
Wetlands Committee of Management Inc. unless that amount arose in the ordinary course
Management
Inc.
normal
terms
and conditions.
of business in accordance with Winton Wetlands Committee of Management Inc. normal terms and conditions.

Any non-audit services provided to Winton Wetlands Committee of Management Inc have been performed in
accordance
with
the applicable
independence
requirements
as set out above.
Any non-audit
services
providedauditor
to Winton
Wetlands Committee
of Management
Inc have been performed in accordance with th
applicable auditor independence requirements as set out above.
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WINTON WETLANDS COMMITTEE OF MANAGEMENT INC.
Statement of Profit
or Loss and
other Comprehensive Income
ABN: 53 224 268 294
for
the yearOF
ended
June
2016
STATEMENT
PROFIT
OR LOSS
AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR

Statement of
Financial Position as at 30 June 2016
WINTON WETLANDS COMMITTEE OF MANAGEMENT INC.

ENDED 30 JUNE 2016

Note
Revenue
Other income
Employee provisions expense
Depreciation and amortisation expense
Bad and doubtful debts expense
Accelerate Visitation - Site Development
Accelerate Visitation - Visitor Experience
Ecological Renewal - Land Management
Ecological Renewal - Restoration Science
Extend our Partnership
Make our community proud
Connect in remarkable way
Unlock our potential
Unlock our potential - Hub
Governance
Corporate Services
Loss on Revaluations
Sundry expenses
Current year surplus before income tax
Tax expense
Net current year surplus

2
2
3
3
3

Other Comprehensive Income
Other Comprehensive Income
Total other comprehensive income for the year
Total comprehensive income for the year
The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.

2016
$
1,956,667
216,309
(955,005)
(131,700)
(12,548)
(8,150)
(177,635)
(146,327)
(30,279)
(101,602)
(55,481)
(60,853)
(64,615)
(50,371)
(238,210)
(768,131)
(627,931)

2015
$
3,138,607
93,979
(823,491)
(73,616)
(91)
(14,299)
(2,154)
(176,637)
(177,937)
(13,668)
(19,835)
(32,622)
(25,762)
(44,919)
(268,404)
(581)
1,558,568

(627,931)

1,558,568

-

-

(627,931)

1,558,568

ABN: 53 224 268 294
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AS AT 30 JUNE 2016

ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash on hand
Accounts receivable and other debtors
Inventories on hand
Other current assets
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS
NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Property, plant and equipment
Other non-current assets
TOTAL NON-CURRENT ASSETS
TOTAL ASSETS
LIABILITIES
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Accounts payable and other payables
Lease liabilities
Employee provisions
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Lease liabilities
Funds Held in Trust
TOTAL NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
TOTAL LIABILITIES
NET ASSETS
EQUITY
Retained surplus
Reserves
Historical Balancing account
Crown Land transferred from DEWLP
TOTAL EQUITY

Note

2016
$

2015
$

4
5
6
7

9,253,571
39,922
16,527
183,128
9,493,149

11,732,096
50,464
20,814
231,703
12,035,077

8

6,279,517
6,279,517
15,772,665

3,425,104
3,425,104
15,460,181

9
10
11

95,541
49,670
46,904
192,115

125,262
30,468
30,632
186,362

10
9

7,474,766
7,474,766
7,666,881
8,105,785

26,943
9,131,660
9,158,603
9,344,965
6,115,216

3,872,869
168,038
1,446,378
2,618,500
8,105,785

4,500,800
168,038
1,446,378
6,115,216

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.
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Winton Wetlands Committee of Management Inc.
WINTON WETLANDS COMMITTEE OF MANAGEMENT INC.
ABN 53 224268 294
ABN: 53 224 268 294

Statement
of CashOFFlows
for theFOR
year
ended
30 June
2016
STATEMENT
CASH FLOWS
THE
YEAR ENDED
30 JUNE
2016

Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended 30 June 2016
WINTON WETLANDS COMMITTEE OF MANAGEMENT INC.
ABN: 53 224 268 294
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2016

Note
Balance at 1 July 2014
Comprehensive Income
Surplus for the year
Other comprehensive income for the year
Prior Year adjustments

Retained
Surplus

Revaluation
Reserve

$
2,935,177

$
168,038

Historical
Balancing
account
$
1,446,378

Assets
Contributed

$
4,549,593

1,558,568

1,558,568

7,055

7,055

Total other comprehensive income
Total equity items
Balance at 30 June 2015

7,055
1,565,623
4,500,800

168,038

1,446,378

7,055
1,565,623
6,115,216

Balance at 1 July 2015
Comprehensive Income
Surplus for the year
Other adjustments
Prior Year adjustments
Crown Land transferred from DEWLP
Total above line items
Total equity items

4,500,800

168,038

1,446,378

6,115,216

(627,931)

(627,931)

-

-

8(d)

Balance at 30 June 2016

2,618,500
(627,931)

-

-

3,872,869

168,038

1,446,378

For a description of 'Revaluation Surplus', refer to Note 18
For a description of 'Historical Balancing account', refer to Note 21

2,618,500

Note

Total

2,618,500
1,990,569
8,105,785

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Receipts from donations, bequests and raffles
Payments to suppliers and employees
Interest received
Receipts relating to Goods and Services Tax
Net cash generated from operating activities

15

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds on sale of property, plant and equipment
Payment for property, plant and equipment
Movement in Work in progress
Net cash used in investing activities
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Release of Finance lease liability at the time of vehicle disposal
Increase/(decrease) in finance lease commitments
Net cash used in financing activities
Net increase in cash held
Cash on hand at beginning of the financial year
Cash on hand at end of the financial year

4

2016
$

2015
$

326,711
(2,152,818)
297,046
186,783
(1,342,278)

176,549
(1,865,558)
466,652
200,147
(1,022,210)

7,239
(1,833,540)
684,104
(1,142,196)

(1,985,814)
(1,985,814)

13,692
(7,741)
5,950

57,411
57,411

(2,478,524)
11,732,096
9,253,571

(2,950,612)
14,682,708
11,732,096

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2016

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2016
WINTON WETLANDS COMMITTEE OF MANAGEMENT INC.
ABN: 53 224 268 294
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2016

WINTON WETLANDS COMMITTEE OF MANAGEMENT INC.
ABN: 53 224 268 294
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2016
The financial statements cover Winton Wetlands Committee of Management Inc. as an individual entity, incorporated and domiciled in Australia.
Winton Wetlands Committee of Management Inc. is incorporated under Crown Land (Reserves) Act (Vic)1978.
Note 1

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of Preparation
The financial statements are general purpose financial statements that have been prepared in accordance with Standing Direction 4.2, given
pursuant to Financial Management Act 1994 (FMA) , Australian Accounting Standards – Reduced Disclosure Requirements of the Australian
Accounting Standards Board (AASB), other applicable Financial Reporting Directions, Australian Accounting Standards and Interpretations of the
Australian Accounting Standards Board. The entity is a not-for-profit entity for financial reporting purposes under Australian Accounting Standards.
The financial statements, except for the cash flow information, have been prepared on an accruals basis and are based on historical costs,
modified, where applicable, by the measurement at fair value of selected non-current assets, financial assets and financial liabilities. The amounts
presented in the financial statements have been rounded to the nearest dollar.
Accounting Policies
(a) Revenue
Winton Wetlands Committee of Management Inc. entered into the Winton Wetlands Restoration Funding Agreement with the State of Victoria
through the Department of Environment, Land, Water and Planning (DELWP), with the provision of up to $20 million in total, exclusive of
GST, to restore, rehabilitate and improve Winton Wetlands in accordance with the Future Land Use Strategy (FLUS 2006).
The funds originally comprised $17 million cash, with the ability to generate an additional $3 million net in proceeds from the sale of land.
Under the Funding Agreement, the Committee is entitled to any interest earned and accrued from the investment of the Funds from 15 July
2009. The Funds are held on Trust by the Committee and drawn on by the Committee subject to the preparation and approval by DELWP of
an Annual Business Plan and budget. Details of the remaining funds held in trust appear in these accounts.
Funds may only be expended by the Committee in accordance with the Funding Agreement and the approved Annual Business Plan.
Revenue from the rendering of a service is recognised upon the delivery of the service to the customer.
All revenue is stated net of the amount of goods and services tax.
(b) Inventories on hand
Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Net realisable value represents the estimated selling price less all
estimated costs of sales.
Inventories acquired at no cost or for nominal consideration, if any, are measured at the current replacement cost as at the date of
acquisition.
(c) Property, Plant and Equipment
Each class of property, plant and equipment is carried at cost or fair value as indicated, less, where applicable, accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses.
Freehold Property
The Department of Environment, Land, Water and Planning (DELWP) now requires the respective Committee of Managements to report the
fair value of the parcels of land they manage, in their respective financial statements. WWCoM has included the Fair Value of parcels of land
it manages, in its 2015/16 financial statements for the first time.
Buildings are shown at Fair Value or at Cost as indicated. In Aug 2016, Opteon Property Group completed independent Valuations for
financial reporting purposes, for Mokoan Hub & Café and associated plant & equipment and infrastructure, two Weir Keeper houses and two
other projects. For simplicity in reporting purpose, the values of these reports are used in financial statements as at 30th June 2016. The
Valuation resulted in revaluation decrement of $768,131, which is reported in the Statement of Financial Performance for the period ended
In periods when the buildings are not subject to an independent valuation, the Management Committee conduct valuations to ensure the
carrying amount for the land and buildings is not materially different to the fair value.
Increases in the carrying amount arising on revaluation of land and buildings are recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated
in the revaluation reserve in equity. Revaluation decreases that offset previous increases of the same class of assets shall be recognised in
other comprehensive income under the heading of revaluation reserve. All other decreases are recognised in profit or loss.
Any accumulated depreciation at the date of the revaluation is eliminated against the gross carrying amount of the asset and the net amount is
restated to the revalued amount of the asset.
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Plant and Equipment
Plant and equipment are measured on the cost basis and are therefore carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and any accumulated
impairment losses. In the event the carrying amount of plant and equipment is greater than its estimated recoverable amount, the carrying
amount is written down immediately to its estimated recoverable amount and impairment losses are recognised either in profit or loss or as a
revaluation decrease if the impairment losses relate to a revalued asset. None of the carrying amounts of plant and equipment were estimated
to be greater than their respective recoverable amounts during the current reporting period.
Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that
future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs
and maintenance are recognised as expenses in profit or loss in the financial period in which they are incurred. Assets are capitalised when
the costs exceed the capitalisation threshold of $3000, the value of asset can be reliably measured and WWCom has control over the future
economic benefits of the asset.
Plant and equipment that have been contributed at no cost or for nominal cost are recognised at the fair value of the asset at the date it is
acquired.
Depreciation
The depreciable amount of all fixed assets, including buildings and capitalised lease assets but excluding freehold land, is depreciated on a
straight-line basis over the asset's useful life to the entity commencing from the time the asset is held ready for use. Leasehold improvements
are depreciated over the shorter of either the unexpired period of the lease or the estimated useful lives of the improvements.
The depreciation rates used for each class of depreciable assets are:
Class of Fixed Asset
Buildings
Infrastructure
Plant and equipment

Depreciation Rate
10%
2.5% - 5%
10% - 40%

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.
Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with the carrying amount. These gains or losses are recognised as
income in profit or loss in the period in which they arise. When revalued assets are sold, amounts included in the revaluation surplus relating
to that asset are transferred to retained surplus.
Work in progress is valued at cost and depreciation commences on completion of works.
(d) Leases
Leases of property, plant and equipment, where substantially all the risks and benefits incidental to the ownership of the asset (but not the
legal ownership) are transferred to the entity, are classified as finance leases.
Finance leases are capitalised, recognising an asset and a liability equal to the present value of the minimum lease payments, including any
guaranteed residual values.
Leased assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives where it is likely that the entity will obtain ownership of
the asset. Lease payments are allocated between the reduction of the lease liability and the lease interest expense for the period.
Lease payments for operating leases, where substantially all the risks and benefits remain with the lessor, are recognised as expenses on a
straight-line basis over the lease term.
(e) Financial Instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions to the instrument. For
financial assets, this is equivalent to the date that the company commits itself to either purchase or sell the asset (i.e. trade date accounting is
adopted).
Financial assets
Loans and receivables includes cash and deposits, term deposits, trade receivables (exc. Statutory receivables). Statutory receivables, are
recognised and measured similarly to contractual receivables (except for impairment), but are not classified as financial instruments because
they do not arise from a contract. Loans and receivables are initially measured at fair value plus attributable costs. Subsequent to initial
measurement, these assets are measured at amosrtised costs using effective interest rate method, less any impairment.
Financial Liabilities
Financial instrument liabilities measured at amortised cost include all of the contractual payables, deposits held and advances received, and
interest bearing arrangements other than those designated at fair value through profit or loss (which are none).Financial instrument liabilities
are initially recognised on the date they are originated. They are initially measured at fair value plus any directly attributable transaction costs.
Subsequent to initial recognition, these financial instruments are measured at amortised cost with any difference between the initial
recognised amount and the redemption value being recognised in profit and loss over the period of the interest bearing liability, using the
effective interest rate method
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WINTON WETLANDS COMMITTEE OF MANAGEMENT INC.
ABN: 53 224 268 294
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2016
Impairment
At the end of each reporting period, the company assesses whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset has been impaired. A
financial asset or a group of financial assets is deemed to be impaired if, and only if, there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of
the occurrence of one or more events (a "loss event"), which has an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset(s).

WINTON WETLANDS COMMITTEE OF MANAGEMENT INC.
ABN: 53 224 268 294
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2016
(h) Cash on Hand
Cash on hand includes cash on hand, deposits held at-call with banks and bank overdrafts, if any.
(i)

In the case of financial assets carried at amortised cost, loss events may include: indications that the debtors, or a group of debtors, are
experiencing significant financial difficulty, default or delinquency in interest or principal payments; indications that they will enter bankruptcy or
other financial reorganisation; and changes in arrears or economic conditions that correlate with defaults.
For financial assets carried at amortised cost (including loans and receivables), a separate allowance account is used to reduce the carrying
amount of financial assets impaired by credit losses. After having taken all possible measures of recovery, if management establishes that the
carrying amount cannot be recovered by any means, at that point the written-off amounts are charged to the allowance account or the carrying
amount of impaired financial assets is reduced directly if no impairment amount was previously recognised in the allowance account.

Receivables are initially recognised at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method, less
any provision for impairment.
(j)

Derecognition
Financial assets are derecognised where the contractual rights to receipt of cash flows expire or the asset is transferred to another party
whereby the entity no longer has any significant continuing involvement in the risks and benefits associated with the asset. Financial liabilities
are derecognised when the related obligations are discharged, cancelled or have expired. The difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability, which is extinguished or transferred to another party, and the fair value of consideration paid, including the transfer of noncash assets or liabilities assumed, is recognised in profit or loss.
(f)

Impairment of Assets
At the end of each reporting period, the entity reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets to determine whether there is
any indication that those assets have been impaired. If such an indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset, being the higher of the
asset's fair value less costs of disposal and value in use, is compared to the asset's carrying value. Any excess of the asset's carrying amount
over its recoverable amount is recognised in profit or loss.
Where the future economic benefits of the asset are not primarily dependent upon the asset’s ability to generate net cash inflows and when
the entity would, if deprived of the asset, replace its remaining future economic benefits, value in use is determined as the depreciated
replacement cost of an asset.
Where it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the entity estimates the recoverable amount of the cashgenerating unit to which the asset belongs.
Where an impairment loss on a revalued asset is identified, this is recognised against the revaluation surplus in respect of the same class of
asset to the extent that the impairment loss does not exceed the amount in the revaluation surplus for that class of asset.

(g) Employee Provisions
Short-term employee provisions
Provision is made for the entity's obligation for annual leave provisions. Annual Leave Provisions are classified as short-term employee
benefits because these are expected to be settled wholly before 12 months after the end of the annual reporting period in which the
employees render the related service, including wages, salaries and sick leave. Short-term employee benefits are measured at the
(undiscounted) amounts expected to be paid when the obligation is settled.
Retirement benefit obligations
Defined contribution superannuation benefits
All employees of the organisation receive defined contribution superannuation entitlements, for which the organisation pays the fixed
superannuation guarantee contribution (9.5%) to the employee’s superannuation fund of choice. All contributions in respect of employees’
defined contribution entitlements are recognised as an expense when they become payable. The organisation’s obligation with respect to
employees’ defined contribution entitlements is limited to its obligation for any unpaid superannuation guarantee contributions at the end of the
reporting period. All obligations for unpaid superannuation guarantee contributions are measured at the (undiscounted) amounts expected to
be paid when the obligation is settled and are presented as current liabilities in the company’s statement of financial position.
Other long-term employee provisions
Provision is made for employees’ long service leave not expected to be settled wholly within 12 months after the end of the annual reporting
period in which the employees render the related service. None of the employees are eligible for long service leave at the end of the reporting
period.

Accounts receivable and other debtors
Accounts receivable and other debtors consist of statutory receivables which predominantly include amounts owing from GST input tax
credits recoverable and contractual receivables, which include mainly debtors in relation to good and services, and accrued interest income.
Receivables that are contractual are classified as financial instruments. Statutory receivables are not classified as financial instruments.

Goods and Services Tax (GST)
Revenues, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of GST, except where the amount of GST incurred is not recoverable from
the Australian Taxation Office (ATO).
Receivables and payables are stated inclusive of the amount of GST receivable or payable. The net amount of GST recoverable from, or
payable to, the ATO is included with other receivables or payables in the statement of financial position.
Cash flows are presented on a gross basis. The GST components of cash flows arising from investing or financing activities which are
recoverable from or payable to, the ATO are presented as operating cash flows included in receipts from customers or payments to suppliers.

(k) Income Tax
Winton Wetlands Committee of Management Inc. is a committee of management appointed under the Crown Land (Reserves) Act (Vic) 1978
and is a State and Territory Body which is income tax exempt under Subdivision A - Exemption for certain state of Div 1AB of Part III of the
Income Tax Assessment Act 1936 (Cth) .
(l)

Provisions
Provisions are recognised when the entity has a legal or constructive obligation, as a result of past events, for which it is probable that an
outflow of economic benefits will result and that outflow can be reliably measured. Provisions recognised represent the best estimate of the
amounts required to settle the obligation at the end of reporting period.

(m) Comparative Figures
Where required by Accounting Standards, comparative figures have been adjusted to conform with changes in presentation for the current
financial year.
When the entity retrospectively applies an accounting policy, makes a retrospective restatement or reclassifies items in its financial
statements, a third statement of financial position as at the beginning of the preceding period, in addition to the minimum comparative
financial statements, must be disclosed.
(n) Accounts Payable and Other Payables
Accounts payable and other payables represent the liability outstanding at the end of the reporting period for goods and services received by
the company during the reporting period which remain unpaid. The balance is recognised as a current liability with the amounts normally paid
within 30 days of recognition of the liability.
(o) Critical Accounting Estimates and Judgements
In application of AASs, the Committee is required to make estimates and judgements about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are
not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on professional judgements derived from
historical experience and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. Actual results may differ from
these estimates. The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis.
Key Estimates
Impairment
The Committee assesses impairment at the end of each reporting period by evaluation of conditions and events specific to the entity that may
be indicative of impairment triggers. Recoverable amounts of relevant assets are reassessed using value-in-use calculations which
incorporate various key assumptions.
Key Judgements
Employee benefits
For the purpose of measurement, AASB 119: Employee Benefits defines obligations for short-term employee benefits as obligations expected
to be settled wholly before 12 months after the end of the annual reporting period in which the employees render the related services. The
entity expects most employees will take their annual leave entitlements within 24 months of the reporting period in which they were earned,
but this will not have a material impact on the amounts recognised in respect of obligations for employees’ leave entitlements.
(p) Economic Dependence
Winton Wetlands Committee of Management Inc. is dependent on the Winton Wetlands Restoration Funding provided by the State of Victoria
under Winton Wetlands Restoration Funding Agreement, for all of its operations. At the date of this report, the Committee has no reason to
believe the Winton Wetlands Restoration Funding Agreement will be terminated.
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(q) New Accounting Standards for Application in Future Periods
The AASB has issued a number of new and amended Accounting Standards that have mandatory application dates for future reporting
periods, some of which are relevant to the entity. The entity has decided not to early adopt any of the new and amended pronouncements.
The entity’s assessment of the new and amended pronouncements that are relevant to the entity but applicable in future reporting periods are
set out below:
Standard

Summary

Application start
date

AASB 9 Financial Instruments The key changes include the simplified requirements for the
classification and measurement of financial assets, a new
hedging accounting model and a revised impairment loss model
to recognise impairment losses earlier, as opposed to the current
approach that recognised impairment only when incurred.

01/01/2018

AASB 15 Revenue From
Contracts With Customers

01/01/2018

AASB 2014-1
Amendments to Australian
Accounting Standards (Part E
Financial Instruments)

AASB 2014-4 Amendments to
Australian Accounting Standards Clarification of Acceptable
Methods of Depreciation and
Ammortisation (AASB 116 &
AASB 138)

AASB 2015-6 Amendments to
Australian Accounting Standards Extended Related Party
Disclosures to not-for-profit public
sector entities (AASB 10, AASB
124 & AASB 1049)

The core principle of AASB 15 requires an entity to recognise
revenue when the entity satisfies a performance obligation by
transferring a promised good or service to a customer.

Impact on Financial
Statements
Detail of impact is still
being assessed

Note 2

Revenue and Other Income

Revenue
Revenue from (non-reciprocal) government grants and other grants
— State/federal government grants – operating
— Other government grants
— Other organisations
Other revenue
— Dividends received
— Interest received on investments in government and fixed interest
securities
Total revenue

Amends various AAs’ to reflect the AASB’s decision to defer the
mandatory application date of AASB 9 to annual reporting
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018 as a consequence
of Chapter 6 Hedge Accounting, and to amend reduced
Disclosure requirements.

01/01/2018

Amends AASB 116 Property, Plant & Equipment and AASB 138
Intangible Assets to: establish the principle for the basis of
depreciation and amortisation as being the expected pattern of
consumption of the future economic benefits of an asset;
prohibit the use of revenue-based methods to calculate the
depreciation or amortisation of an asset, tangible or intangible,
because revenue generally reflects the pattern of economic
benefits that are generated from operating the business, rather
than the consumption through the use of the asset

01/01/2018

The amendments extend the scope of AASB 124 Related Party
Disclosures to not-for-profit public sector entities. A guidance has
been included to assist the application of the standard by not-forprofit public sector entities.

01/01/2016

The changes in revenue
recognition requirements
in ASB 15 may result in
changes to the timing
and the amount of
revenue recorded in the
financial statements.
The standard will also
require additional
disclosures on service
revenue and contract
modifications. The
Committee of Winton
wetlands is still
assessing the impact of
this standard.
This Standard is not
expected to significantly
impact the association’s
financial statements.

This Standard is not
expected to significantly
impact the association’s
financial statements.

Other income
— Rental income
— Other
— Grazing Licence & Temporary Grazing Permit Fees
— Hub Operations - Sales
— Hub Operations - Cost of Goods Sold
— Projects Income
— Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment
Total other income
Total revenue and other income
Note 3

AASB has issued some other amending standards, which are expected to have insignificant impacts on public sector accounting.

2015
$

1,656,894
2,727
1,659,621

2,671,955
2,671,955

-

-

297,046
297,046
1,956,667

466,652
466,652
3,138,607

48,289
38,408
172,431
(71,859)
21,800
7,239
216,309

25,176
29,272
26,419
27,336
(14,225)
93,979

2,172,976

3,232,585

77,510
877,495
955,005

67,193
756,298
823,491

40,054
51,221
17,314
23,112
131,700

54,312
3,693
15,611
73,616

-

91

8,085
4,395
12,480

7,838
4,252
12,089

-

(581)

822,750
8,430,821
9,253,571

985,320
10,746,776
11,732,096

9,253,571

11,732,096

Surplus for the year

(a) Expenses
Employee benefits expense:
— contributions to defined contribution superannuation funds
— Wages
Total employee benefits expense
Depreciation and amortisation:
— land and buildings
— motor vehicles
— furniture and equipment
— software
— Depreciation - Infrastructure
— Depreciation - Plant & Equipment
— Depreciation - Motor Vehicles
Total depreciation and amortisation
Bad and doubtful debts:
— trade and other receivables

Amending the standard
has resulted in extended
disclosures on the
entity's responsible
persons and executive
officer disclosures,
management personnel
and the related party
transactions.

2016
$

Audit fees
— audit services
— taxation services
Total Audit Remuneration
(b) Significant Revenue and Expenses
Net Gain/(Loss) on disposal of property, plant & equipment
Note 4
Cash on Hand
CURRENT
Cash at bank
Project Trust Account - Fixed interest securities - (Term Deposits)
Total cash on hand as stated in the statement of financial position and
statement of cash flows

15,16

Project Trust account balance of $8,430,821 comprises of $7,474,766 (Note (9b)), which is restricted and subject to approval from DELWP and
balance $956,055 which is undrawn funds.

33

34

Winton Wetlands Committee of Management Inc.
ABN 53 224268 294

Winton Wetlands Committee of Management Inc.
ABN 53 224268 294

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2016

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2016
WINTON WETLANDS COMMITTEE OF MANAGEMENT INC.
ABN: 53 224 268 294
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2016

WINTON WETLANDS COMMITTEE OF MANAGEMENT INC.
ABN: 53 224 268 294
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2016
Note 5
Accounts Receivable and Other Debtors
CURRENT
Accounts receivable
Provision for doubtful debts
Other debtors
Total current accounts receivable and other debtors

Note

16

Note 6
Inventories on Hand
CURRENT
At cost:
Inventory
Merchandise - Commemorative Wine and Books
At current replacement cost:
Donated inventory

Note 7
Other Current Assets
Accrued Income
Prepayments
Input Tax Credits
Note 8
Property, Plant and Equipment
LAND AND BUILDINGS
Freehold land at fair value:
Crown Land Parcels - at Fair Value
Total land
Buildings :
At Fair Value
Mokoan Café & External - at Fair Value 2016
Yatch Club & refurbishment & Reserve workshop - at FV 2011
Weirkeeper Houses - at FV
At Cost
Yatch Club refurbishment - costs post 2011 valuation
Weirkeeper Houses - at Cost
Buildings - Accumulated depreciation

2016
$
39,922
39,922
39,922

2015
$
50,464
50,464
50,464

16,527
16,527

20,814
20,814

16,527

20,814

96,365
86,763
183,128

99,406
25,456
106,841
231,703

8(d)

2,618,500
2,618,500

-

8(d)

860,000
140,929
40,000

140,929
27,109

7,136
-

7,136
55,549

(14,032)
1,034,033

(42,762)
187,961

8(d)

Note

2016
$
103,767
90,562
(23,004)
44,112
(3,203)
303,314
663,265
(49,745)
26,600
17,400

2015
$
103,767
49,968
53,949
(10,487)
23,428
(1,878)
277,603
703,428
(33,301)
-

1,129,887
4,782,420

1,138,459
1,326,421

87,724
(44,057)

66,480
(35,589)

59,500
103,168

30,891

91,619
(24,443)
67,177

72,547
(15,611)
56,935

Total plant and equipment

16,232
27,210
14,470
47,778
7,309
10,886
626,115
407,058
163,972
5,723
1,326,752
1,497,096

1,390,767
83,281
3,636
40,594
25,712
245,929
45,056
44,583
111,982
13,594
5,723
2,010,856
2,098,683

Total property, plant and equipment

6,279,517

3,425,104

Infrastructure
Bridge - Winton Ck
Northern Foreshore
CHMP Part 1 & 2
Infrastructure - Accum Depn
Fencing - At cost
Fencing - Accumulated Depreciation
Signage (Road & Interpretive) - At cost
Roadways - At cost
Roadways - Accumulated Depreciation
Boat Ramp - at Fair Value
Observation Pad - at Fair Value

8(d)
8(d)

Total infrastructure
Total land and buildings and infrastructure
PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Plant and equipment:
At cost
Less accumulated depreciation
At fair value
Hub Equipment - at Fair Value
(Accumulated depreciation)

8(d)

Leased motor vehicles:
Capitalised leased vehicles
Less accumulated depreciation
Projects - WIP
Wetlands Hub (Building) WIP
Yacht Club Refurbishment WIP
Carp Structure WIP
Wetlands Hub (P&E) WIP
Carpark - Greens Hill
Reserve Workshop WIP
Northern Foreshore WIP
Signage WIP
Pathways (Bike & Walking) - WIP
Boardwalk - WIP
Observation Pad - WIP
Boat launch - WIP
Duckpond Campsite WIP
SW Wall Campsite WIP

8(a)
8(b)
8( c )

8(a) Pathways
Pathways project is building walking and bicycle pathways through-out the wetlands. Five of the seven kilometres of off-road bicycle pathways
within the wetlands will be completed in 2016-17 when the weather permits access. The pathway will enable the visitor to ride almost level with the
wetland floor as well as accessing cultural and visual significant sites and a walk-in campground.
8(b) Boardwalk/Causeway
The boardwalk is a specifically constructed pathway to span Sargeants Spit, between Sargeants and Winton Swaps. It will link the Mokoan Hub
with the cycle paths within the wetlands and to the neighbouring towns of Benalla and Glenrowan. Due to a welcome wet winter the completion
date of this project has been revised to May 2017.
8(c) Duckpond Campsite
A vehicle track has been built to access the Duckpond area in 2015-16. The Duckpond will become a camping 'overflow' area using portable
toilets when required.
The development of the Bill Friday Campground, planned for October 2017, will enable visitors to stay overnight within the wetland and experience
the early morning and late evening bird and animal activity. This campground will also provide a base for visitors to access the iconic Lunette, a
truly special site.
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8(d) Asset revaluations
The Department of Environment, Land, Water and Planning (DELWP) now requires the respective Committee of Managements to report the fair
value of the parcels of land they manage, in their respective financial statements. WWCoM has included the Fair Value of parcels of land it
manages, in its 2015/16 financial statements for the first time.
Buildings are shown at Fair Value or at Cost as indicated. In Aug 2016, Opteon Property Group completed independent Valuations for financial
reporting purposes, for Mokoan Hub & Café and associated plant & equipment and infrastructure, two Weir Keeper houses and two other projects.
For simplicity in reporting purpose, the values of these reports are used in financial statements as at 30th June 2016. The Valuation resulted in
revaluation decrement of $768,131, which is reported in the Statement of Financial Performance for the period ended 30th June 2016.
Note

2016
$

2015
$

28,132
4,739
2,475
32,847
14,465
12,883
95,541

81,332
4,156
6,259
9,463
9,024
15,026
125,262

4(a)

7,474,766
7,474,766

9,131,660
9,131,660

Note 10
Lease Liabilities
CURRENT
Lease liabilities

12

49,670
49,670

30,468
30,468

NON-CURRENT
Lease liabilities

12

TOTAL LEASE LIABILITIES

16

49,670

26,943
26,943
57,411

Note 9
Accounts Payable and Other Payables
CURRENT
Accounts payable
Other current payables
Balance of Credit Cards (5)
Grazing Permit in advance
Superannuation Payable
PAYG Withheld
NON-CURRENT
Funds Held in Trust

16

16

NON-CURRENT
Provision for employee benefits: long service leave
Employee Provisions
Employee provisions represents amounts accrued for annual leave.
The current portion for this provision includes the total amount accrued for annual leave entitlements.

46,904
46,904

30,632
30,632

46,904

30,632

2016
$

2015
$

10

49,670
-

30,468
26,943

49,670

57,411

Finance leases on motor vehicles of which there are 2 (2015: 2) commencing between May 2014 and Feb 2016 are 3 and 1 year leases,
respectively, all with an option to purchase at the end of the lease term. No debt covenants or other such arrangements are in place.
(b) Operating Lease Commitments
Non-cancellable operating leases contracted for but not capitalised in the financial statements.
Payable – minimum lease payments
— not later than 12 months
— between 12 months and five years
— later than five years
Rental lease for 24 Church Street, Benalla premises.

26,000
-

26,000

The property lease commitments are non-cancellable operating leases contracted for but not recognised in the financial statements with a five-year
term. Increases in lease commitments may occur in line with the consumer price index (CPI). There is no operating lease expense expected for
2016/17 as the Committee is going to relocate its office to Mokoan Hub.
Note 13
Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets
The Committee are not aware of any existing contingent liabilities or contingent assets as at the date of signing of this report.
Note 14
Events After the Reporting Period
The Committee are not aware of any significant events since the end of the reporting period.

Note 15

Lease liabilities are secured by the underlying leased assets.
Note 11
Employee Provisions
CURRENT
Provision for employee benefits: annual leave

Note 12
Capital and Leasing Commitments
(a) Finance Lease Commitments
Payable – minimum lease payments:
— not later than 12 months
— between 12 months and five years
— later than five years
Minimum lease payments

Note

Cash Flow Information

Reconciliation of Cash Flows from Operating Activities with Net Current Year Surplus
Net current year surplus
Non-cash flows:
Depreciation and amortisation expense
Loss on revaluation of Non-current assets
Grant Income journal in
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment
Doubtful debts expense
Loss on sale of investments
Gains on contributed assets
Changes in assets and liabilities:
(Increase)/decrease in accounts receivable and other debtors
Increase/(decrease) in accounts payable and other payables
(Increase)/decrease in accrued income
Increase/(decrease) in employee provisions
(Increase)/decrease in inventories on hand
(Increase)/decrease in input tax credits
(Increase)/decrease in prepayments
Increase/(decrease) in income in advance

(627,931)

1,558,568

131,700
768,131
(1,656,894)
(7,239)
-

73,616
(2,671,955)
91
581
-

10,542
(53,104)
3,041
16,272
4,287
20,077
25,456
23,384
(1,342,278)

(39,364)
52,058
95,455
787
(20,814)
(55,240)
(25,456)
9,463
(1,022,210)

Note 16
Financial Risk Management
The agency’s principal financial instruments consist mainly of deposits with banks, term deposits, receivables (exclude statutory receivables such
as GST input tax credits recoverable), finance lease liabilities, borrowings and other payables (exclude statutory amounts such as taxes payable).
The carrying amounts for each category of financial instruments, measured in accordance with AASB 139 as detailed in the accounting policies to
these financial statements, are as follows:
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Loans and receivables
Total financial assets
Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities at amortised cost:
— accounts payable and other payables
— lease liabilities
Total financial liabilities

4
5

9,253,571
39,922
9,293,493

11,732,096
50,464
11,782,560

9
10

142,445
49,670
192,115

155,894
57,411
213,305

Refer to Note 16 for detailed disclosures regarding the fair value measurement of the company’s financial assets and financial liabilities.
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Financial Risk Management Policies
The finance committee is responsible for monitoring and managing the company's compliance with its risk management strategy and consists of
senior Board members. The finance committee’s overall risk management strategy is to assist the agency in meeting its financial targets while
minimising potential adverse effects on financial performance. Risk management policies are approved and reviewed by the finance committee on
a regular basis. These include credit risk policies and future cash flow requirements.

(c) Market Risk
i. Interest rate risk
Winton Wetlands exposures to market risk are primarily through interest rate risk with no exposure to foreign currency risk or equity price
risks. Objectives, policies and processes used to manage interest rate risk are disclosed in the paragraphs below.
The fair value interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates.
The agency does not hold any interest bearing financial instruments that are measured at fair value, and therefore no exposure to fair value
interest rate risk.

Specific Financial Risk Exposures and Management
The main risks the entity is exposed to through its financial instruments are credit risk, liquidity risk and market risk relating to interest rate risk and
other price risk. There have been no substantive changes in the types of risks the entity is exposed to, how these risks arise, or the Committee's
objectives, policies and processes for managing or measuring the risks from the previous period.
(a) Credit risk
Credit risk arises from the financial assets of Winton Wetlands Committee of Management Inc., which comprise cash and cash equivalents
and trade and other receivables. Committee’s exposure to credit risk arises from the potential default of counter parties on their contractual
obligations resulting in financial loss to the agency. Credit risk is measured at fair value and is monitored on a regular basis

Cash flow interest rate is the risk that the future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rate.
The agency manages this risk by mainly undertaking fixed rate financial instruments with relatively even maturity profiles, with only
insignificant amounts of financial instruments at floating rate. For the financial instruments which are held at floating rate, management
regularly monitors movement in interest rates.
ii.

Winton Wetlands Committee of Management Inc. does not have any material credit risk exposures as its major source of revenue is the
'Grant income from Trust Funds'. Credit risk is further mitigated as the money for this grant is already received and held by the agency in the
form of term deposits. Other credit risk the entity faces is from debtors, for which the agency's policy is to deal with entities with high credit
ratings. Provision for doubtful debts is recognised when there is evidence that Winton Wetlands will not be able to collect a receivable.
Credit Risk Exposures
The maximum exposure to credit risk by class of recognised financial assets at the end of the reporting period is equivalent to the carrying
value and classification of those financial assets (net of any provisions) as presented in the statement of financial position.
Accounts receivable and other debtors that are neither past due nor impaired are considered to be of high credit quality. Aggregates of such
amounts are detailed at Note 5.

Other price risk
Other price risk relates to the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market
prices (other than those arising from interest rate risk or currency risk) of securities held.
The agency is not exposed to any other price risk.

Fair Values
Fair value estimation
The fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities are presented in the following table and can be compared to their carrying amounts as
presented in the statement of financial position.
The fair values disclosed in the following table have been determined based on the methodology that cash on hand, accounts receivable and other
debtors, and accounts payable and other payables are short-term instruments in nature whose carrying amount is equivalent to fair value.

The committee has no significant concentrations of credit risk exposure to any single counterparty or group of counterparties.
Credit risk related to balances with banks and other financial institutions is managed by the finance committee in accordance with approved
Investment policy. Such policy requires that funds are only invested with either a Tier One (CBA, ANZ, NAB and Westpac) or a Tier Two
Bank (Suncorp Metway, Bendigo Bank, Adelaide Bank, St George Bank and Macquarie Bank).
(b) Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk arises from the possibility that the Winton Wetlands might encounter difficulty in settling its debts or otherwise meeting its
obligations related to financial liabilities. The entity manages this risk through the following mechanisms:
• preparing forward-looking cash flow analyses in relation to its operating, investing and financing activities;
• maintaining a reputable credit profile;
• managing credit risk related to financial assets;
• only investing surplus cash with major financial institutions; and
• comparing the maturity profile of financial liabilities with the realisation profile of financial assets.
The entity's exposure to liquidity risk is deemed insignificant based on prior periods’ data and current assessment of risk.

Financial liability and financial asset maturity analysis

Financial liabilities due for
payment
Accounts payable and other
payables (excluding estimated
annual leave and deferred income)
Finance lease
liabilities
Total expected
outflows
Financial Assets - cash flows
realisable
Cash on hand
Accounts receivable and other
debtors
Other financial assets
Total anticipated
inflows
Net (outflow) / inflow on financial
instruments

39

1 to 5 years
2016
2015
$
$

Over 5 years
2016
2015
$
$

2016
$

Total

2015
$

2016
Carrying
Fair
Amount
Value
$
$

2015
Carrying
Fair Value
Amount
$
$

Financial assets
Cash on hand (i)
Accounts receivable and other debtors (i)
Total financial assets

4
5

9,253,571
39,922
9,293,493

9,253,571
39,922
9,293,493

11,732,096
50,464
11,782,560

11,732,096

Financial liabilities
Accounts payable and other payables (i)
Lease liabilities
Total financial liabilities

9
10,

142,445
49,670
192,115

142,445
49,670
192,115

155,894
57,411
213,305

155,894
57,411
213,305

(i)

The following table discloses the contractual maturity analysis for the Winton Wetlands' financial liabilities.

Within 1 Year
2016
2015
$
$

Note

50,464

11,782,560

Cash on hand, accounts receivable and other debtors, and accounts payable and other payables are short-term instruments in nature whose
carrying amount is equivalent to fair value. Accounts payable and other payables exclude amounts provided for annual leave, which is outside
the scope of AASB 139.

Note 17
Capital Management
The Committee controls the capital of the entity to ensure that adequate cash flows are present to fund its operating and planned infrastructure
requirements and that returns from investments are maximised within tolerable risk parameters. The finance committee ensures that the overall
risk management strategy is in line with this objective.
The finance committee operates under policies approved by the Winton Wetlands Committee of Management Inc. Risk management policies are
approved and reviewed by the Committee on a regular basis. These include credit risk policies and future cash flow requirements.

142,445

155,894

49,670

30,468

-

26,943

192,115

186,362

-

26,943

-

-

142,445

155,894

49,670

57,411

Every time Finance, Remuneration & Commercial Operations Sub-Committee of Winton Wetlands Committee of Management Inc. is required to
make decision on maturing term deposits, it reviews current operating cash position and cash required for short term operations and planned
infrastructure requirements, and then the sub-committee makes recommendations accordingly.

192,115

213,305

Note 18

Reserves

(a) Revaluation Reserve
The revaluation reserve records the revaluations of non-current assets.
9,253,571

11,732,096

9,253,571

11,732,096

39,922

50,464

39,922
-

50,464
-

9,293,493

11,782,560

-

-

-

-

9,293,493

11,782,560

9,101,378

11,596,198

-

(26,943)

-

-

9,101,378

11,569,255

(b) Analysis of Each Class of Reserve
Valuation of Buildings transferred from Goulbrn Murray Water - Valuation
in 2011

Note

2016
$
168,038

2015
$
168,038

168,038

168,038

The reserve comprises of $140,929 Yatch Club Buildings & refurbishments and $27,109 worth of Weirkeeper House (248 Mokoan Rd) transferred
from Goulburn Murray Water in 2011.
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Note 19
Responsible Persons and Related Disclosures
In accordance with Ministerial Directions issued by the Minister for Finance under the Financial Management Act 1994 , the following
disclosures were made regarding responsible persons for the reporting period.
The names of the persons who were responsible persons at any time during the financial year were:
Responsible Minister
The Hon Lisa Neville MP
Minister for Environment, Climate Change and Water
The Hon. Lily D'Ambrosio MP
Minister for Energy, Environment and Climate Change
The Hon Lisa Neville MP
Minister for Water

Other Commitments
Rental Lease
Vic Fleet Lease Agreement
Vic Fleet Lease Agreement

Property
24 Church Street
Hilux - 1BP1XN Motor Vehicles
Camry - 1FQ2GJ Motor Vehicle

Accountable Officer
Mr James Grant – Chief Executive Officer

Start Date
1-Mar-13
01-Jul-15
09-Feb-16

End Date
Oct-16
May-17
Jan-17

In 2015 16, there were 5 consultancies where the total fees payable to the consultants were $10 000 or greater. The total expenditure incurred
during 2015-16 in relation to these consultancies is $133,769 (excluding GST).

(23 May 2016 to 30th June 2016)

Details of individual consultancies are outlined below:
(23 May 2016 to 30th June 2016)

Consultant

(1 July 2014 to 30 June 2016)
(1 July 2014 to 30 June 2016)
(25 March 2016 to 30 June 2016)
(1 July 2014 to 24 March 2016)
(1 July 2014 to 30 June 2016)
(1 July 2014 to 30 June 2016)
(25 March 2016 to 30 June 2016)
(25 March 2015 to 30 June 2016)
(1 July 2014 to 30 June 2016)
(1 July 2014 to 24 March 2016)
(25 March 2016 - 30 June 2016)
(25 March 2015 to 30 June 2016)

1 Mogg Osborne Audit Pty Ltd
2 Yoke
3 Jo Bell Heritage Services
4 Rural Works Pty Ltd
5 Maddocks
not paid
not paid

Purpose of consutancy

01-Jul-15
01-Jul-15

Total
approved
project fee
(exc.
30-Jun-16 NA
30-Jun-16 NA

01-Jul-15
01-Jul-15
01-Jul-15

30-Jun-16 NA
30-Jun-16 NA
30-Jun-16 NA

Start Date

(1 July 2014 to 30 June 2015)

The number of Responsible Persons whose remuneration from the Committee was within the specified bands are as follows:
2016
2015
2014
9
7
7
$0 - $9,999
2
1
1
$10,000 - $19,999
0
1
0
$20,000 - $29,999
The remuneration of the Accountable Officer is as follows:
$140,000 - $149,999
$150,000 - $159,999
The remuneration of employees other than the Accountable Officer is as follows:

Auditors
Brand & Website
Design
Cultural Heritage
Civil Engineering
Legal Services

End Date

Expenditure
2015-16 (exc.
GST)
$11,345
$18,645

Future
expenditur
e (exc.
GST)
$12,000
$20,000

$30,800
$33,443
$39,536

$10,000
nil
$20,000

Details of consultancies (valued at $10 000 or greater)
In 2015-16, there were 8 consultancies engaged during the year, where the total fees payable to the individual consultancies was less than
$10 000. The total expenditure incurred during 2015-16 in relation to these consultancies was $20,766 (excluding GST).
Note 21
Historical Balancing account
Historical Balancing account is a part of retained earnings ,shown separately. It was created at 30th June 2014 and comprises of following two
amounts:

Remuneration
The remuneration received or due and receivable by the Responsible Persons in connection with the governance and management of the
Committee's activities during the reporting period was:
2016
2015
2014
$54,209
65350 $66,289
Remuneration

$0 - $9,999
$10,000 - $19,999
$20,000 - $29,999
$30,000 - $39,999
$40,000 - $49,999
$50,000 - $59,999
$60,000 - $69,999
$70,000 - $79,999
$80,000 - $89,999
$90,000 - $99,999
$100,000 - $109,999
$110,000 - $119,999

annually
annually
annually

Note 20
Consultancy expenditure
Details of consultancies (valued at $10 000 or greater)

(18 December 2014 to 22 May 2016)

Committee Members
Dr Dennis O'Brien - Chairperson
Ms Suzy Martin - Deputy Chairperson
Ms
Ms Tammy
Tammy Atkins
Atkin
Mr Doug Bain
Mr Rob Carolane
Ms Rowena Ellis
Ms Irene Grant
Ms Sue Lebish
Mr Tony McIIroy
Mr Brian McLennan
Ms Kim Scanlon
Ms Catherine Wall

Amount
$28,020
$23,664
$22,884

2016
0
1

2015
0
1

2014
1
0

2016
21
6
0
2
1
2
1
1
0
1
0
1

2015
19
2
2
1
1
1
1
2
1
-

2014
0
0
1
0
0
0
0
2
1
-

WWCoM's agreement with the Department states that the interest earned on 'Trust Funds' is the Committee's income. Hence, interest earned on
term deposits every year should be reported as income. Pre 30th June 2014, WWCoM was showing an amount of $3,196,277 as interest to be
earnt on Trust funds under liabilities in the Balance Sheet. In the 30th June 2014 financial statement, this liability of $3,196,277 was cleared and
the balances were moved to a Historical Balancing account and since then, yearly interest income has been reported in 'Statement of Profit &
Another adjustment to Historical Balancing account consists of $1,749,899 done to match the opening amount of 'Trust Funds' in the Balance
Sheet to match the 2013-14 Business Plan.

Note 22
Entity Details
The registered office of the entity is:
Winton Wetlands Committee of Management Inc.
24 Church Street
Benalla
VIC 3672
The principal place of business is:
Winton Wetlands Committee of Management Inc.
24 Church Street
Benalla
VIC 3672

Executive Remuneration
There were no executive officers other than those disclosed under Responsible Persons.
Employee Costs and Entitlements
Community members of the Committee are paid sitting fees in accordance with the current Victorian Department of Premier & Cabinet's
Appointment and Remuneration Guidelines for Victorian Government Boards, Statutory Bodies and Advisory Committees.
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WINTON WETLANDS COMMITTEE OF MANAGEMENT INC.
ABN: 53 224 268 294
DIRECTORS’ DECLARATION

Under the establishment of the Committee of Management by the Victorian state government the Committee
members confirm that the Committee of Management is a reporting entity that does not have public accountability
as defined in AASB 1053: Application of Tiers of Australian Accounting Standards and that these general purpose
financial statements are prepared in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards – Reduced Disclosure
Requirements.
In accordance with a resolution of the Committee of Winton Wetlands Committee of Management Inc., the
Committee of Management declares that:
1

2.

The financial statements and notes, as set out on pages 2 to 20, are in accordance with the Standing
Direction 4.2 of Financial Management Act 1994 , applicable Financial reporting Directions and:
(a)

comply with Australian Accounting Standards; and

(b)

give a true and fair view of the financial position of the company as at 30 June 2016 and of its
performance for the year ended on that date.

In the Committee of Management’s opinion, there are reasonable grounds to believe that the entity will be
able to pay its debts as and when they become due and payable. The board is not aware of any
circumstances which would render any particulars included in the financial statements to be misleading or
inaccurate.
3 Winton Wetlands Committee of Management has agreed to indemnify all its Committee Members and
certain Executive Officers against all liabilities to another person that may arise from their position as
Committee Members or Executive Officers of the Committee of Management, except where the liability
arises out of conduct involving a lack of good faith. The policy agreement stipulates that the Committee of
Management will meet the relevant liability. The premium paid in respect of this policy is part of a combined
premium for a comprehensive suite of insurance products held by the Committee of Management .

Dr Dennis O'Brien - Chairperson

Mr James Grant - CEO
Dated this

28
[day]

day of

November
[month]

2016
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF
Report on the Financial Report
WINTON WETLANDS COMMITTEE OF MANAGEMENT INC.

We have audited the accompanying financial report of Winton Wetlands Committee of Management Inc., which comprises the
statement
of financial
position
as at 30 June 2016, the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, statement of
Report
on the
Financial
Report
changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, notes comprising a summary of significant accounting
We have audited the accompanying financial report of Winton Wetlands Committee of Management Inc., which comprises the
policies and other explanatory information and the Committee’s declaration.
statement of financial position as at 30 June 2016, the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, statement of
changes
in equity
and statement
of cash flows
year then
ended, notes comprising a summary of significant accounting
Committee
of Managements'
Responsibility
forfor
thethe
Financial
Report
policies and other explanatory information and the Committee’s declaration.
Then Committee of Management is responsible for the preparation of the financial report that gives a true and fair view in
accordanceofwith
Australian Accounting
Standards
and Standing
Direction 4.2, given pursuant to Financial Management Act 1994
Committee
Managements'
Responsibility
for the Financial
Report
and for such internal controls as the Committee determines are necessary to enable the preparation of the financial report that
Then Committee of Management is responsible for the preparation of the financial report that gives a true and fair view in
gives a true and fair view and is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error
accordance with Australian Accounting Standards and Standing Direction 4.2, given pursuant to Financial Management Act 1994
and
for such
internal controls as the Committee determines are necessary to enable the preparation of the financial report that
Auditor’s
Responsibility
gives a true and fair view and is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial report based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with
Australian
Auditing Standards. Those standards require that we comply with relevant ethical requirements relating to audit
Auditor’s
Responsibility
WETLANDS
COMMITTEE
OF MANAGEMENT
INC.
engagements and plan and perform theWINTON
audit to obtain
reasonable assurance
about whether
the financial report
is free from
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial report based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with
ABN: 53 224 268 294
material misstatement.
Australian Auditing Standards. Those standards require that we comply with relevant ethical requirements relating to audit
AUDITOR’S
DECLARATION
engagements
and performing
plan and perform
the audit
to obtain
assurance
about whether
the financial
report
is freereport.
from The
An audit involves
procedures
to obtain
auditreasonable
evidenceINDEPENDENCE
about
the amounts
and
disclosures
in the
financial
material
misstatement.
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
financial
whether due
to fraud orstatements
error. In making
those risk
assessments,
the auditor
considers internal
control
relevant to
Wereport,
have audited
the financial
of Winton
Wetlands
Committee
of Management
Inc. for
the financial
period ende
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial report. The
the registered
entity’s
preparation
of the
financial
report that
gives a true
and
fair
view in
order toby
design
audit procedures
that
are
June
2016.
We
provide
you
with
the
following
information
for
the
period
covered
our
engagement
and
our
auditor
repor
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
financial report, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to
control.
An audit
also includes
appropriateness
of respect
accounting
policies used
and the
reasonableness
of accounting
Mogg
Osborne
Pty Ltd evaluating
(‘the firm’)the
is independent
with
to Winton
Wetlands
Committee
of Management
Inc. and its
the registered entity’s preparation of the financial report that gives a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are
estimates
made by
the directors,
as well as
evaluating
the overall
presentation
of
the financial Accountants,
report.
controlled
entities
in
accordance
with
APES
110
Code
of
Ethics
for
Professional
Section
290
Independence
–
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
Assurance
Engagements
, as
control.
An audit
includes
evaluating
the obtained
appropriateness
of accounting
policies
andathe
reasonableness
of accounting
We believe
that also
the
audit
evidence
we applicable.
have
is sufficient
and appropriate
toused
provide
basis
for our audit opinion.
estimates
made
byfirm,
the directors,
well as or
evaluating
the overall
of the
report.
Neither
the
nor any as
partners
professional
staff presentation
members who
arefinancial
members
of the audit team nor any managerial (or
Independence
staff
members
who
provide
more
than
10
hours
of
non-audit
services
to
Winton
Wetlands
Committee
of Management Inc. n
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion.
In conducting
our family
audit, we
have complied
with direct
the independence
whichinterest
has already
been given
to the Committee
Committee of Manage
immediate
members,
have any
or material requirements
indirect financial
in Winton
Wetlands
of Winton Wetlands Committee of Management Inc., would be in the same terms if given to the Committee as at the time of this
Independence
Inc.
auditor’s report.
In conducting our audit, we have complied with the independence requirements which has already been given to the Committee
Neither
the firm
nor members
of the Winton
Wetlands
Committee
of ifManagement
Inc audit team,
nortime
their
family
ofOpinion
Winton
Wetlands
Committee
of Management
Inc., would
be in the
same terms
given to the Committee
as at the
of immediate
this
members,
auditor’s
report. owe any amount to Winton Wetlands Committee of Management Inc. unless that amount arose in the ordinary c
In our opinion, the financial report of Winton Wetlands Committee of Management Inc. ,is:
of business in accordance with Winton Wetlands Committee of Management Inc. normal terms and conditions.
Opinion
(i)
giving a true and fair view of the Committee of Management's financial position as at 30 June 2016 and of its
performance
for the
yearofended
on that date;Committee of Management Inc. ,is:
In our Any
opinion,
the financial
report
Winton
non-audit
provided
to Wetlands
Winton
Wetlands
Committee
of Management
Inc
have been performed in accordance w
(ii)
comply
withservices
the Australian
Accounting
Standards
- Reduced
Disclosure
Requirements;
and
(i)
giving a true
and fair view of the Committee
of Management's
financial position as at 30 June 2016 and of its
requirements
as set out
above.
(iii) applicable
comply auditor
with the independence
Standing Direction
4.2, given pursuant
to the
Financial Management Act (1994) which requires the
performance for the year ended on that date;
entity to comply with Part 7 of that act.
(ii)
comply with the Australian Accounting Standards - Reduced Disclosure Requirements; and
Name
of Firm
MOGG OSBORNE AUDIT PTY LTD
(iii)
comply with the Standing Direction 4.2, given pursuant to the Financial Management Act (1994) which requires the
entity to comply with Part 7 of that act.
Auditor's signature:
Peter Thomas Mogg
FCPA, RCA
Auditor's signature:
Peter Thomas Mogg
Address:
40-44 High
FCPA,
RCA Street
Name of Partner
Peter
Thomas
Mogg.
Cobram
VIC 3644
40-44
High Street
Address:
DatedDate
this

Address

Dated this

Cobram
24/11/2016
[day]
VIC 3644

40-44 High Street
[day]
28

day of
day of

[month]
[month]
November

2016
2016

COBRAM
VIC 3644
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